
 
 
 
 
Please note the contents of these documents contain detailed 
descriptions and diagrams of Grenfell Tower. This could be upsetting for 
some.   
 
This version of the document has therefore been created with any 
photographs of fire damage or the interior of the Tower removed to 
minimise the amount of potentially upsetting or distressing information 
within it.   A copy of the original documents with photographs can be 
provided on request.   
 
Please take care when reading or circulating these documents.   
 
The Grenfell Health & Wellbeing Service is a free and confidential local 
NHS service for children and adults affected by Grenfell.  To talk to 
someone, you can get in touch by phone on 020 8637 6279 or by e-mail 

Grenfell.wellbeingservice@nhs.net.   
 
This document and its contents have been prepared for the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities, and Local Government. For further 
information, please contact GrenfellTowerSite@communities.gov.uk 

https://grenfellwellbeing.com/




  

My remit therefore became to make the building safe to facilitate the above. The remit was also 

extended to ensure the erection of scaffolding to screen the tower and allow future deconstruction of the 

tower.  

Following consultation with the HSE, structural engineers appointed by the Royal Borough of 

Kensington and Chelsea and Dangerous Structure sub-contractor  engineers, the decision was made to 

prop the building to ensure stability was maintained and to facilitate the above operations. A 

programme of installing aluminium shore props commenced and continued over several months. 

Throughout, the building was monitored by an electronic surveying system with the ability to identify 

any movement of the structure. Visual inspections of the structure were also carried out throughout.  

It is now 3 years since the installation of that initial propping. During this time ownership of the tower 

has transferred several times. As a site team we have therefore been somewhat hindered by the lack of 

an identifiable client to allow an open and honest discussion regarding the structure until MHCLG took 

ownership.  

Recognising the 3-year anniversary of the propping installation I considered it prudent to convene the 

original Dangerous Structure engineers to inspect the structure with me on Friday 14th August 2020.  

On inspection we found the original props to be in good condition and subject to regular inspection, 

currently 3 times week, and maintenance when necessary, the propping is acceptable whilst 

considerations are given to the design of any longer-term propping.  

The structure, however, was found to be showing continued signs of deterioration. With evidence of 

concreting spalling from columns and ceilings, following an excessively hot period the week before. 

The structure had also triggered movement monitors during that period, due to thermal movement of the 

structure. It could be seen water ingress continues to seep into the upper floor structures through the 

damaged roof. Several attempts have been made to rectify this without total success.  

We are approaching what will now be the 4th winter that the damaged structure will have to go through. 

The effect of freeze/thaw, where water ingress in the structure freezes and forces more concrete to spall 

off is of concern. Exposed reinforcement in the concrete also continues to deteriorate. Forensic 

engineers have been appointed to try and predict the rate of deterioration of both the concrete and 

reinforcement. However, by visual inspection this deterioration is accelerating.  

I am therefore writing to you to recommend deconstruction of Grenfell Tower at the earliest 

opportunity. Whilst we have made every effort to maintain the stability and overall condition of the 

structure, it is and remains a dangerous structure requiring continual 24 hour monitoring together with 

proactive and reactive works when necessary.   

In making this recommendation I have discussed this matter with the engineers present at our meeting 

on the 14th August 2020 and I have considered their opinions and comments. In support of my 

recommendation I attach a letter from   of Michael Barclay Partnership, who has 

provided independent structural engineering expertise throughout.   

We will continue to do so what is required to maintain the structure, however it must be recognised that 

the continued deterioration of the structure will compromise the structures stability further and may 

present issues in allowing a safe deconstruction of the tower if the structure becomes an unsafe working 

environment.  

I recognise the emotions and the need for sensitivity in relation to the tragic events of the 14 June 2017 

and this recommendation by no way seeks to undermine any continuing legal proceedings, criminal 

investigations or the on-going Public Inquiry. However, as the  

Dangerous Structure advisor my recommendation is that the structure should de-constructed at the 

earliest opportunity. This is based solely in consideration of the structure itself.  
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  By email      

20th August 2020   

   

Dear Alistair,   

   

Future role and engagement with Grenfell Tower       

Following on from our meeting on the 4th August I undertook to write to you now that MHCLG 

have assumed the ownership and responsibilities for the building.   

   

During the meeting you confirmed that decisions relating to the future of the Tower now rest 

with MHCLG and the commission which has been set up to consider a future memorial on the   

health and safety regulator is to ensure that you fulfil your responsibilities arising from  

enforcement of relevant health and safety legislation. Our main objectives now, as with any 

major construction project, is for you to demonstrate that any future proposals for the Tower 

addresses the safety of workers and the public, (including residents and local businesses). 

HSE fully supports any decision on the future of the Tower and site which meets these 

objectives.    

   

Following our previous involvement by HSE specialists there were two main areas that we felt 

should be addressed as a priority. They relate to work that might be required to ensure the 

continued stability of the Tower and plans for future wok particularly as they relate to public 

safety.    

   

Firstly, HSE note that whilst the current state of the Tower is being continuously monitored, it is 

deteriorating. As the client, MHCLG will need to review any future proposals for work on the 

Tower, in order to determine what action needs to be taken within a relevant timeframe that will 

provide safety and assurance for the workers on site and for the residents of the surrounding 

area.    

   

Secondly should any planned work that would involve material changes to the current propping 

and stability of the building be undertaken , HSE seeks early reassurance that the approach 

being planned constitute an appropriate and safe system of work, and that the corresponding 

emergency preparedness plans for the building and surrounding area are suitable. We would 
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expect this to be addressed via the normal route of CDM requirements for notification of 

building works that fall under the requirements of the legislation.   

   

   

Yours sincerely 

 

 




